
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 
Bideford 

Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 13 January 2023 

 

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES  
COMMITTEE 

 

On: Monday 23 January 2023 At: 10.00 am 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

The meeting will be able to watch through the Councils YouTube Channel 

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 
 

 

To: Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 

Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley, 

K James, N Laws, R Lock and S Newton 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 5th 
December (Pages 3 - 10) 

 

3.   Action List (Page 11) 

4.   Public Contributions  

 Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme.  (The deadline for 
registering to speak is by 2pm Thursday 19 January 2023. To register please email 
dem.services@torridge.gov.uk). 

 

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube
mailto:dem.services@torridge.gov.uk


 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 

nature of their interest when the item is being considered. 
 

6.   Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II  

7.   Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the 
Chair and the Committee  

8.   High Level Feasibility Study on the Viability of Using a Cruise Ship for 

Temporary Accommodation at Middle Dock, Appledore. (Pages 12 - 19) 

 To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place 
 

9.   Removal of Burial Restriction for Members of the Community with an Islamic 

Faith (Pages 20 - 30) 

 To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place 
 

10.   Taxi Rank Provision on Bideford Quay Car Park (Pages 31 - 36) 

 To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place 
 

11.   Local Authority Housing Fund  

 To receive the report of the Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer)  – report 
to follow.  
 

12.   Forward Plan (Page 37) 

13.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph   XXXXXX   of Part I and 
paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

14.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

 There are no Part II items 

 

Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey 

 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford 
 

Monday, 5 December 2022 - 10.00 am 

 
PRESENT Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 

 Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillors D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, C Hodson, D Hurley, 

K James, N Laws and R Lock 

 
 

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Chief Executive 
 S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 

 S Kearney 
N Argles 

D Sibley 

- Head of Communities & Place 
- Estates Manager 

- Climate & Sustainability Officer  
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

 K Brown - Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
 Councillors L Ford, P Hames, S Langford and C Leather 

 

282.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Christie and S Newton.  
 

283.    MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD ON 24 OCTOBER 2022  
 

Matters Arising 
 
Minute 275 – In response to a query asking if The Plough needed to stay on 

forward plan following the grant of external funding. The Chief Executive explained 
the reasons why The Plough was on the forward plan and that a report would be 

brought back to Committee to consider future funding from TDC.  
 
Councillor Bright advised if TDC stopped their support then it might jeopardise 

future grant applications. It was agreed to leave The Plough on the forward plan. 
 

Minute 279 – The Chair asked if there was any progress on a staff telephone 
directory. The Senior Electoral & Democratic Services Officer advised he would 
chase with IT.    

 
It was proposed by Councillor K James, seconded by Councillor R Lock                    

and - 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

 
Resolved:   That the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 2022 be signed as 

a correct record. 
 

(Vote:  For - 8, Against – 0, Abstention - 1)  
 
 

284.    ACTION LIST  
 

The Action List was discussed and updated.  
 

285.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 

Councillor Philip Cloke of Great Torrington Town Council introduced himself and 

advised he was currently the Chair of the Planning Committee for the Town 
Council. He spoke on item 9 of the agenda – New Development off South Street 
Car Park, Torrington.  

 
Concern was expressed to the name of Market Gardens advising the location was 

not near a market nor any gardens. It would distract from and confuse people from 
visiting the actual garden and the newly revived and vibrant market. The Town 
Council suggested a royal aspect be included in the naming of the new 

development as a fitting and lasting remembrance to the late Queen Elizabeth II.  
 

 
286.    FORWARD PLAN  

 

The Forward Plan was noted.   
 

287.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they 

related were under discussion. 
 

288.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II  
 

The Chair advised, following a request from Councillor Ford, item 16 – Restaurant Proposal at 

Appledore Fishdock - would move up the agenda to be the first one presented.  
 

It was proposed by Councillor R Lock, seconded by Councillor K James and – 
 
Resolved:    That the Agenda as circulated be agreed. 

 
(Vote: For – unanimous) 
 

 
289.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 

THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

 
290.    RESTAURANT PROPOSAL AT APPLEDORE FISHDOCK  

 

The Estates Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was to consider 

the conversion of the upstairs (1st) floor of Building A, currently a net loft and 
adjacent storage area, into a seafood restaurant.  
 

Following a query, the Estates Manager advised if the recommendation in the 
report be approved, and Planning agreed then discussion would need to be had 

regarding the tenancy. It was envisaged that the lease would be granted on the 
whole site, however, if strong objections were received this could be negotiated.  
 

Councillor Ford, Ward Member of Appledore addressed the Committee and 
expressed his concerns for this project. He acknowledged that the site needed 

improving however did not welcome a restaurant as he felt Appledore did not need 
further competition when businesses are struggling as it is. Further concerns 
included Environmental impact, lack of Councillor involvement, legal issues, sub-

letting and nearby hostel accommodation. He urged Members of the Committee to 
visit the site.  

 
It was queried to Councillor Ford the number of boats currently operating from 
Appledore. Councillor Ford advised 6, however, it was confirmed that presently only 

one full time boat was in operation.   
 

Councillor Bushby left the meeting at 10.30am.  
 
Two Members of the Committee confirmed they had visited the site.  

 
In response to Councillor Ford’s concerns, the Head of Communities and Place 

advised the following: 
 

 Members had not yet been consulted as the plan was still in its infancy. A 

presentation had taken place at Property & Major Projects Working Group to 
work the scheme to its current level. Councillor Hicks had been consulted as 

Lead Member only; 

 An Environmental impact would take place during the planning process; 

 No hostel accommodation was yet established, however, Hubbastone Road 
cottages had just received planning consent to be converted for hostel 
accommodation.  

 
In response to a query, the Head of Communities & Place advised of the current 

landings at Appledore and believed the applicant bought fish from other markets 
which were transported by road. 
 

Councillor Ford left the meeting at 10.35am and the discussion continued.  
 

Members voiced their comments for the venture highlighting the pros and cons. 
Particular concern was expressed regarding the other leases on site.  
 

It was proposed by Councillor K James, seconded by Councillor D Brenton and -  

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

 
Resolved: 

 
That the proposal in the report be agreed in principle and allow a planning 

application to be submitted.  
 
(Vote: For – unanimous)  

 
291.    NEW DEVELOPMENT OFF SOUTH STREET CAR PARK, TORRINGTON  

 

The Head of Communities & Place presented the report, the purpose of which was 
to request that the committee assign a name to the new street under construction 

off South Street Car Park, Torrington.  
 

Councillor C Bright declared a personal interest – dual hatted – Great Torrington 
Town Council. 
 

A brief discussion took place where the Head of Communities & Place explained 
the reasons why this had been referred to TDC to decide.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor K James, seconded by Councillor N Laws that the 
name Market Gardens be approved. 

 
It was proposed by Councillor R Lock, seconded by Councillor D Brenton that the 

name have a Royal aspect.  
 
A vote was taken on Councillor K James’ proposal – For: 5 

 
A vote was taken on Councillor R Lock’s proposal – For: 3  

 
Resolved: 
 

That the name ‘Market Gardens’ be adopted and approved. 
 

292.    TDC CARBON FOOTPRINT  
 

The Climate & Sustainability Officer presented the report, the purpose of which was 

to inform the group of the outcome of the Council’s carbon footprint review for 
2021/2022 and to advise that the report provides a basis for understanding and 

discussion for Members on the way forward.  
 
A discussion took place with queries addressed as follows. 

 
Concern was expressed on the compromise between the financial aspects and/or 

implications and tackling the actual issue. The Climate & Sustainability Officer 
advised that if Central Government were serious about meeting Net Zero by 2050 
then they would have to help financially. It was advised funding is always being 

investigated by herself and both the Estates Team and Waste & Recycling 
Manager. 

 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

It was advised that partnership work was carried out with Devon County Council 
and that there was a meeting scheduled tomorrow to find out about more funding. A 

lot of funding for the public was done through Energy 361. 
 

Suggestion was made for an insulation type scheme to be implemented.  
 
Work that the Councillor Climate Change Working Group had carried out was 

advised.  
 

Comments were made that the report was good, however tackling Climate Change 
issues was a constant battle.  
 

Reassurance was given that the Waste & Recycling Manager was always looking 
for ways to improve his Carbon Footprint. Free consultancy support had been 

secured from the Energy Savings Trust to look at TDC’s fleet and how the transport 
can be decarbonised, particularly in the waste and recycling vehicles. Renewable 
energy would be investigated for the new Environment Centre.  

 
The report was noted.  

   
 

293.    ENERGY SURVEY REPORTS SUMMARY  
 

The Climate & Sustainability Officer presented the report, the purpose of which was 

to inform Members of the measures available to reduce energy use in TDC 
properties.  
 

It was confirmed that the note on page 60, reference savings, was now out of date 
but was correct at the time of the surveys being carried out.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor C Hodson, seconded by Councillor D Brenton and -    
 

Resolved: 
 

That the potential energy efficiency measures be noted, and it be approved that the 
measures are reviewed and incorporated into the Council’s Asset Management 
Plan and developed within the Action Delivery Plan which will look at individual 

properties and their future use.  
 

(Vote: For – 8, Against – 1, Abstentions - 0) 
 

294.    HOMELESSNESS DUTY TO ACCOMMODATE/SUPPORT  
 

The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) presented this item. 

 
Prior to the commencement of the meeting a flowchart detailing the homeless 
approach taken by the Housing Options Team was distributed to the Members in 

the room.  
 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) explained the flowchart in 
detail.  

 
The chart included information on: 

 local connections 

 prevention duty 

 procedure for someone already homeless 

 priority need 

 main housing duty  

 temporary accommodation 

 intentionally homeless 

 
The update was noted by Members.  

 
295.    DELEGATED MARKET APPROVAL  

 

The Head of Communities & Place presented the report, the purpose of which was 
to seek approval for an extension to the agreed power of delegated market 

approval to the Chief Executive.  
 

It was highlighted that in paragraph four in the introduction of the report, it should 
read April 2023 not April 2022. 
 

A brief discussion took place where it was suggested that the recommendations in 
the report should include a time limit and for Ward Members to consulted.  

 
Advice was given on areas that already have permission to operate markets along 
with the current procedure that is in place for permitting markets.   

 
It was proposed by Councillor K James, seconded by Councillor N Laws and -  

 
Resolved: 
 

That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive to assess and permit 
independent markets within 6 miles of the Bideford Pannier Market for a period of 3 
years and with consultation of Ward Members. 

 
(Vote: For – unanimous) 

 
296.    LEASEHOLD DISPOSAL OF PART OF THE SPORTS GROUND, KINGSLEY 

RD, BIDEFORD  
 

The Estates Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was to consider a 

new leasehold interest of 25 years of the Sports Ground, Kingsley Road, Bideford 
to Bideford AFC to replace the existing licence.  
 

It was proposed by Councillor B Hicks, seconded by Councillor R Lock and –  
 

Resolved: 

Page 8



7 
 

 
 

 
That the proposal for the leasehold disposal of the Sports Ground, Kingsley Road 

as detailed in the report be approved and authority given for the issue of a draft 
lease and the application for FIT consent and, as and when FIT consent is given, 

the completion of the lease be approved.   
 
(Vote: For – unanimous) 

 
297.    BURROUGH FARM PUBLIC OPEN SPACE/ FENCE AROUND THE 

FOOTBALL PITCH  
 

The Head of Communities & Place presented the report, the purpose of which was 

to advise Members of the erection of a fence and lockable gate around the football 
pitch at Burrough Farm, Northam and the presence of a restrictive covenant, held 

by the Council, to protect the land as public open space.  
 
A brief discussion took place. 

 
It was confirmed that the fence stands at 3 metres tall and planning was not 

required as it was allowed under permitted development.  
 
The pitch is used regularly by various football teams.  

 
Councillor Bushby returned to the meeting at 11.56am but did not take part in the 

vote for this item.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor B Hicks, seconded Councillor A Dart and –  

 
Resolved: 

 
That the recommendations as written in the report be approved.  
 

(Vote: For – unanimous) 
 

298.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 

It was proposed by Councillor K James, seconded by Councillor C Hodson and –  

 
Resolved: 

 
That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the 

likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and 
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
(Vote:  For - unanimous) 
 

 
299.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

 

Page 9



8 
 

 
 

300.    RESTAURANT PROPOSAL AT APPLEDORE FISHDOCK  
 

The Head of Communities & Place advised, as a decision had been made in Part I 
no further discussion was required on this item.  

 
301.    DISPOSAL OF TDC LAND/ASSET  

 

The Head of Communities & Place presented the report, the purpose of which was 
to consider the disposal of a TDC asset. 

 
In response to a query the Estates Manager advised the commercial market had 
not increased as much as the residential market.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor K James, seconded by Councillor R Lock and -  

 
Resolved: 
 

That the recommendations in the report be agreed. 
 

(Vote: For- unanimous)  
 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) 

 
It was proposed by Councillor K James, seconded by Councillor N Laws and – 
 

Resolved: That the press and public be readmitted. 
 

(Vote: For – unanimous) 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and closed at 12.06 pm 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  
 

 

Page 10



ACTION LIST 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE – from 5.12.22 

Minute 

No. 

Action By Who Date 

Contacted 

Comments  Completed 

281 Skate Park – to consult 
with SWW as the site is 

in a critical flood risk area 
 

SK  AR advised he will be speaking 
with the EA re potential 

flooding implications – 
14.11.22 
 

05.12 – To stay on the action 
list  

 

  

279 TDC staff telephone 
directory 

TV 05.12.22 05.12 – To chase with IT 
 
07.12.22 – Internal telephone 

directory emailed to all 
Councillors and non-elected 

Members.  
 

 Complete 

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 3



 
  

Report : Head of Communities and Place 

To:  Community and Resources Committee  

Subject: High level feasibility study on the viability of using a cruise ship for 

temporary accommodation at Middle Dock, Appledore. 

Date: 23
rd

 January 2023   

 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:   

To update members on the high-level feasibility study of using a cruise ship moored at Middle Dock 
to provide temporary accommodation for citizens in need of housing. 
  

 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

At the December 2022 Full Council Meeting, Councillor Brenton presented a Notice of 
Motion regarding the possibility of using a cruise ship moored at Middledock as a quick 
solution for accommodating people requiring emergency or temporary housing. Officers 
have undertaken a high level investigation into the feasibility of providing this facility with 
estimated costs.   
 
The exact Notice of Motion that was approved by Full Council was: 
 
With the large numbers of cruise ships being scrapped or laid up due to a fall in 
demand following Covid. I propose that TDC explore the feasibility of forming a 
partnership with our neighbouring authorities i.e NDDC, Exeter CC etc. with a view to 
leasing or renting a vessel to accommodate emergency or other housing list people. 
Cruise ships have a high standard of habitation and self-contained servicing and a 
suitable craft which would fit into Middle Dock could provide a quick solution for some 
of our desperate citizens needing housing. 

 
2. REPORT 

 
Berth Length – The length of the berth at Middle Dock is 98m which will immediately limit the 

length of the vessel to be berthed there to a maximum of about 100m.  In order to safely berth 
a cruise vessel of this size at Middle dock, the dock wall, bollards and shore facilities would 
need to be significantly upgraded.  We have already seen the bollards being recently pulled 
from their foundations by the crane barge Bristol Giant – so in essence a complete redesign 
and refurbishment of Middle Dock will be required. Quay wall repair and stabilisation has been 
investigated and costed as part of the Appledore Clean Maritime Innovation Centre project and 
within the Levelling Up bid a sum of £1.5M is sought for that.          
 
Vessel Hire - Middle Dock length makes the maximum vessel size to be something of the Fred 
Olsen “Balmoral” Class - 710 cabins (https://www.fredolsencruises.com/our-ships/balmoral).  
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 8

https://www.fredolsencruises.com/our-ships/balmoral


 
  

 
Picture and website link included for illustrative purposes only.  This vessel is not under 
consideration as a possible acquisition or lease. 

 
 
Economies of scale have meant that most smaller cruise ships have long since been scrapped 
and the remaining small survivors are vessels such as the “Hebridean Princess” (72m loa) 
which are now fitted and crewed for the luxury bespoke cruise market and carry 49 passengers 
(https://www.hebridean.co.uk/cruise-calendar/hebridean-princess-cruises/).   
 

 
 
Picture and website link included for illustrative purposes only.  This vessel is not under 
consideration as a possible acquisition or lease. 

 
Leasing a vessel of this sort of specification, even one already laid up, for accommodation 
purposes is likely to be difficult and expensive. The long term hire of a vessel removes it from 
sea service but the vessel machinery must still be kept functional if the ship is to maintain her 
certification and tickets, critical to the value of the vessel – so she will also require a crew, 
even it if is only chefs and engineers - all of which comes at a cost.    
 
A rough estimate is about £25,000 a month hire figure – the final sum will depend on the 
vessel and the negotiating powers of TDC.     

 
Berth Depth – Middle Dock and the navigational channel up to Middle dock “dries out” at 

about 2 hours either side of high tide.  Their charted depth is about 0.5m above chart datum 
and any proposal to bring sea going ships into the river must account for this.  There are 2 

Page 13

https://www.hebridean.co.uk/cruise-calendar/hebridean-princess-cruises/


 
  

solutions; either make the channel deeper and maintain that depth or bring vessels that are 
capable of “taking the ground” with each tide.    

 
Cruise Ship Design – Cruise ships are ocean going vessels which are designed with “fine 
lines”  for long sea passages and fuel economy in mind.  Simply put, the hull design tapers 
down from the waterline to the long narrow keel and at no point in their design life are they 
considered suitable for taking the ground – they would quickly sag and break up under their 
own weight. So, if the intention is to bring a cruise ship into the river up to Middle Dock, then a 
channel and a berth deep enough for the vessel to stay afloat at every state of the tide would 
need to be dredged and maintained to the depth of the target vessel + at least 2m – so 
probably at least 8m below chart datum. The distance from deep water at Appledore is 
approximately .75nm and the navigational channel would need to be at least 75 m wide.  Given 
the depth of water at the berth, the new foundations of the quay wall would need to go down to 
a depth to guarantee its stability – probably in the region of at least 12m below the present 
surface level (This will need to be checked as it is a rough estimate made by the Harbour 
Master).  The capital dredge campaign to achieve this work would be significant and aside 
from the licences and permissions necessary, would likely cost in the region of at least 
£300,000 for plant and disposal of dredged material alone.    
 
Other Options – an alternative option might be to lease / purchase an accommodation barge 

which would be strong enough and designed to take the ground at Middle Dock.  There are 
examples of numerous variants that have been used in the UK and abroad – as military 
accommodation or as prisons.   See Appendix 1 for examples (Accommodation Barge for Hire 

(220 cabins) - Harmony Marine Shipbrokers (hmsbroker.com) or (  Accommodation Work 
Barge for Charter - AWB International (accommodationworkbarges.com)  
 
We do not know without further investigation if these vessels are suitable to allow the vessel to 
take the ground, but even if they had to stay afloat, they would draw significantly less than a 
cruise ship and the likely dredge cost might be reduced.  In any event, the necessary quay 
side work highlighted above, would still need to be undertaken if we were to put a vessel with 
people living on board alongside there.     

 
Loom / Access / Services / Waste – Assuming the nautical issues could be resolved / paid 

for, the presence of a large cruise ship or an unsightly block ship type barge alongside at 
Middle Dock would “loom” significantly over Appledore.     
 
More widely, the presence of an additional 200 – 400 persons living on a cruise ship / barge at 
Middle Dock would also require the installation of the appropriate services to keep the facility 
running – waste, water, electricity, IT, gas, parking, road access and gangway access.  None 
of which are present at Middle Dock and would need to be specifically routed – perhaps adding 
another £100,000 to the project cost.  In addition many of the existing buildings on the site 
would need to be made secure, improved or demolished if people are to be living at the site. 
 
No assessment of the suitability of Middle Dock for temporary accommodation has been made.  
There is likely to be the requirement for educational, health and other services and we have 
not yet investigated whether the local network of services has the capacity to accommodate. 
 
The Planning aspect of this proposal have also not been considered and we will need to take 
advice on whether there are implications that will need to be addressed. 
 
Appledore - The long running question of marine authority and governance of Appledore 

would also have to be resolved before this project could go ahead – relying on TDC status as 
the landowner and leaseholder of the foreshore will not be sufficient – the project will require 
an authority with suitable marine powers to supervise delivery. 
 

 

Page 14

https://www.hmsbroker.com/vessels-for-charter/accommodation-barge-hire/
https://www.hmsbroker.com/vessels-for-charter/accommodation-barge-hire/
http://accommodationworkbarges.com/charter.html
http://accommodationworkbarges.com/charter.html


 
  

3. Conclusions     
      

Initial high-level investigation suggests that this initiative is physically possible if sufficient 
resource is made available for its delivery. However, it will not be without its difficulties and is 
likely to cost at least £1,500,000 - £2,000,000 in capital preparatory work. 
 
No assumptions have yet been made about whether the initiative is sensible/ affordable from a 
revenue perspective and this would need to be examined in detail in any subsequent report. 
 
No assessment of the Planning implications of this proposal has been made. 
 
No assessment of the on land requirement for services, power, or waste management has 
been considered. 
 
No partner Local Authorities have yet been identified, investigation into this and how it affects 
their own duties under the Housing legislation will be investigated if a full feasibility report and 
business case is requested by this committee.  We have spoken to a large Unitary Authority 
that investigated a similar idea recently.  They decided not to proceed due to the various 
complexities they identified. 
 
The berth at Middle Dock would not be suitable for a vessel designed to stay afloat and 
therefore only a barge like vessel would be suitable. 
 
Compliance issues around the safety of such accommodation at the site would need in depth 
consideration and management solutions. 
 
If it were resolved that a cruise ship or barge were to be moored at Middle Dock for the 
purposes of providing temporary accommodation that would effectively make delivery of the 
Appledore Clean Maritime Innovation Centre project impossible and mean that Levelling Up 
funds would not be available for the required quay wall stabilisation works.  In addition, 
depending on timing and delivery of the intended Environment Centre, it might be that the 
recycling fleet will need to be relocated to another site on a temporary basis. 
 
The proposal has not been greeted positively by Shelter (The UK’s leading Housing and 
Homelessness Charity). When consulted on the initial idea by the BBC, Charlie Trew, Head of 
Policy at Shelter, said the cruise ship proposal did not address the root cause of 
homelessness. 
 

 
 

4. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Financial Implications 

 

To be fully identified in any feasibility report and business case. 
 

 
     Human Resources Implications 

 

The following will need to be considered: 
Management and supervision requirement 
Cleaning 
Security 
 
The human resource implications of the proposal are likely to be considerable.  No 
assessment of commercial viability has been completed so it is unclear whether addition 

Page 15



 
  

resource requirement would be funded by the project income or would come as an additional 
cost to the Council. 
 
 

     Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 

 
 To be fully identified in any feasibility report and business case 

 
     Equality/Diversity 

 

To be fully identified in any feasibility report and business case 
 

     Risk Management 
 

To be fully identified in any feasibility report and business case 
 

     Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 

The intention of the notice of motion is to investigate the proposal as a solution to the 
problems that the council is facing in sourcing and affording temporary accommodation. 

 
 
 

    Member Consultation 
 
    Cllr Brenton (Proposer) – 13/01/23 
 To be included 
 
    Cllr Ford (Ward Member) – 13/01/23 

 To be included 
 
    Cllr Hames (Ward Member) – 13/01/23  

 To be included 
 
 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that members consider, in light of the initial findings, whether or not officers 
should direct resources toward the production of a detailed feasibility study and business case 
(at the expense of delay to other priority projects) in line with the Notice of Motion presented by 
Cllr Brenton and resolve accordingly. 

 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
  

 Consultations: Date of Consultation  
Officers Consulted –Steve Hearse, Sean Kearney, 
David Heyes, Staci Dorey, Paul Brown, Councillor 
Brenton,  

 Reporting Officer  Richard Haste 

   

 

 
 

Appendix 1 
 
Example advertised on the internet.  The companies advertising have not been 

contacted and availability is uncertain. 
 

Page 17



 
  

 

Page 18



 
  

 

Page 19



 

 
  

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Head of Communities and Place 

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: Removal of Burial restriction for members of the community with an Islamic 

Faith 

Date: 23rd January 2023 Reference:  

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT: To consider removing the restriction to TDC residents only for Muslim 

burials to bring in line with guidelines/policy for all other faiths. 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
Higher Cemetery, Bowden Green, Bideford has a dedicated area to accommodate Muslim 
burials in the district. TDC allow non-resident burials/cremations for all other faiths at full cost 
with a 50% reduction in costs for residents but in the 2019 paper approved at C&R Committee, 
this restricted Muslim burials to TDC residents only. 
This report sets out the new situations that have been identified. 

 
2. REPORT 

 
To date, 2 Muslim burials for TDC residents have taken place since the area was identified and 
in accordance with conditions of use approved by the Community and Resources Committee in 
May 2019. 
The terms were as below: 
  

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 9



 

 
  

 
The Cemetery Admin Team have now received an enquiry from an undertaker in Bristol 
representing a family out of the Torridge district but still in North Devon who have expressed an 
interest in Higher Cemetery, Bowden Green, Bideford for a family member who is nearing end of 
life. 
 
A Muslim grave is generally slightly wider and deeper but will depend on the deceased level of 
practice and beliefs. They can have a wooden frame which we would expect the undertaker to 
arrange, and they can be deeper to allow the soul to sit up. Currently TDC do not permit shrouding 
only. As such, costs of digging the grave can be higher. 
 
Under the current guidance (Item 4) TDC would have to refuse this request which could be 
perceived as discriminatory. Having researched other cemeteries across the UK, we are unable to 
find anywhere that has the same restrictions as TDC and still offer to accommodate the request at 
full cost for out of district. 
The nearest alternative Muslim burial location is Exeter or Bristol. Further locations include, but not 
limited to, London, Reading, Woking (Brookwood) and the Midlands. 
 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
The proposal to remove the resident only restriction on Muslim Burials would be compliant 
with legislation and in line with the policy position for other faiths. 

 
Financial Implications 
Increase of income at full cost for non-resident.  
Review costs per grave size as Muslim burials require a larger grave. Grave digging service 
do not charge extra at this time, but this will need to be reviewed depending on the demand. 
TDC resident burials for all faiths currently run at a loss. 
 
Note – Discounts and charges for burials and internments of all kinds are to change for the 
year commencing 23/24.  Full details are available in the 23/24 Fees and Charges Schedule. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability Implications 
n/a 
 
Equality/Diversity 
Discrimination 
 
Risk Management 
Reputational damage 
 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
The report seeks a change of policy in relation to Muslim burials. 
 
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
 
Cllr Hicks Consulted 13/01/23 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

 
  

 
3. CONCLUSIONS 
 

Officers are seeking agreement to remove current restrictions, which could be perceived as 
discriminatory, to the Muslim faith. Removal of current restrictions would be supported by 
TDC Equality Policy. 

 
 

 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Members approve the proposal as detailed in this report and give fairness and racial 
equality for resident and non-resident burials of all faiths. 
 

 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Consultations: Operational Management Team 
Contact Officer: Rachel Gulwell 
Background Papers: Fees & Charges 2022/23, C&R Committee Report May 2019, Email from 
Exeter Bereavement Services 

    
    
     

 

Page 22



Torridge District Council -  Fees & Charges 2022/23 
    

   Note: Amounts listed include VAT (if applicable) 
 

2022/23    VAT Status 

       Cemeteries  
  

TDC  NON RES 
  

   

   

 

TDC Resident Reduction    50%    E 

 

Interment 

      

 

Adult 

      

Single   £682.50  £1,365.00   E 

Double  £835.00 £1,670.00   E 

Triple   £971.50 £1,943.00    E 

Child          

Under 16    Free Free     D E 

Ashes         

Adult   £157.50   £315.00    E 

Child (under 16)        Free Free   E 

Scattering     £81.50    £163.00     

         

Interment at Weekend additional fee     £157.50 £315.00   E 

         

Exclusive Rights of Burial - For 25 years*        

Adult   £551.50 £1,103.00   E 

Child (under 16)        Free Free   E 

Renewal (Plot Un-used)   £551.50 £1,103.00   E 

Renewal (Plot in use) TDC resident reduction 

is not applicable to this fee 

    £147.00 £147.00   E 

Ashes    £81.50 £163.00   E 

   

   

 

* Pre-booking of grave plots at Northam and Torrington is no longer available. 

       

Chapel Use / Services / Overnight Laying of Coffin addit. fee £121.00  £242.00   E 

Page 23



       

       

Cemeteries  
  

  TDC  NON RES 
  

 
 

Erection of Headstone 

  
 

 
 

£184.00 

 
 

£368.00 

  E 

       

Erection of Tablet / Vase     £65.50 £131.00   E 

       

Additional Headstone Inscription     £38.00 £76.00   E 

       

 

Register search fees the same for residents 
and non residents of TDC 
 

      

Search of Register   £23.00 £46.00       D E 

       

Copy of Register Entry   £23.00 £46.00     D E 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Monday, 10 June 2019 - 10.00 am

PRESENT Councillor R Hicks (Chair)
Councillors D McGeough, D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, 
P Christie, A Dart, J Hutchings, K James, N Laws, R Lock and 
R Wiseman

ALSO PRESENT J Wallace - Head of Paid Service
S Dorey - Senior Solicitor
S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources)
A Redwood - Property and Procurement Manager
J Williams - Environmental Health & Community Safety 

Manager
C Norman - Solicitor
S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer

MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC

Councillors P Pennington, D Hurley, S Langford and P Hames

11

The Chair, Councillor Hicks, welcomed everyone to the first Community & 
Resources Committee meeting of the new Council.

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

There were no apologies for absence received.

2.   MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 23 APRIL 2019 

It was proposed, seconded and -

Resolved:   That the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 April 2019 be signed as a 
correct record.

(Vote:  For 6, Abstentions 4)  - two Members arrived late at the meeting

3.   PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 

Mr Shaun Barnes, Ms R Winstone on behalf of the Friends of Bideford Starlings,  
Ms F Balfour and Mr R Durrant all spoke in support of the Petition previously 
presented to the Council, opposing to the firework displays that take place close to 

Page 25



2

Bideford Long Bridge, and the alleged harm and distress caused to the starlings 
which roost under the Bridge.   They raised the following points:

 Mr Barnes advised he had found dead starlings in the town and had a 
video/photos showing this.  

 The distress the fireworks had caused, not only to the starlings, but also to 
dogs, domestic pets and to vulnerable people. 

 A Council leaflet which states it is an offence to cause unnecessary suffering 
to animals - dogs are terrified by the fireworks.

 The changes to be made by Torridge District Council – alternative location, 
quieter fireworks etc.

 The number of signatures to the Petition, which it was stated had increased 
since it had been presented.   

 Reference was made to the remedial actions requested on the Petition.

Mr Steve Barnes addressed the Committee as one of the organisers of the 
fireworks.   He stated that the organisers were willing to compromise on the 
fireworks as much as possible, and were keen to work with those opposing the 
displays.

4.   FORWARD PLAN 

Councillor Brenton enquired as to why “Amendments to the Constitution” had not 
been included on the Forward Plan.  The following  update was given by the Head 
of Paid Service and Leader, Councillor Dart:   

 A meeting had taken place with Andy Bates from the Local Government 
Association who will ask that the relevant specialist make contact with the 
Council. 

 A Working Group to be set up as a matter of urgency to take this forward.

 The Working Group will present all changes to Full Council, therefore this 
item to be added to the Council Forward Plan.  At the request of Councillor 
Dart, this item will also be added to this Committee’s Forward Plan.

The Head of Paid Service addressed the following enquiries raised by Councillor 
Laws:

 Avon Lane –the normal procedure is for an item to be brought to this 
Committee from Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 Members will be consulted on the Covenants to the Hotel Site in Westward 
Ho! prior to a report being presented to this Committee

The Forward Plan was noted.  

Page 26



3

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they 
related were under discussion.

6.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II 

It was proposed, seconded and –

Resolved:    That the Agenda as circulated be agreed.

(Vote: For - Unanimous)

7.   URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE 

There were no urgent matters brought forward.

8.   FIREWORK DISPLAYS/STARLINGS ROOSTING UNDER BIDEFORD BRIDGE 
(PETITION) 

Councillor C Bright declared a personal interest – involved with the Gt Torrington 
Cavaliers.

The Head of Paid Service presented the report, the purpose of which was for 
Members to consider the Petition and to make recommendations on how to 
proceed.  

Councillors were advised that as this is a matter that covered both Councils, the 
Head of Paid Service had been in contact with the Bideford Town Clerk.  

Councillor Christie, who is also a Town Councillor, updated the Committee on the 
alternative options to the present arrangements evaluated by the Town Council.   A 
display of silent fireworks that had taken place at Westward Ho! proved to be 
uninspiring, not particularly quiet and there had also been an issue with height.

The Town Council had then considered the following alternative locations for the 
fireworks:

 A river barge moving down stream
 The new Bridge was suggested due to the height issue with silent fireworks.     

Councillor Christie had emailed Mr Julian Rosskilly, Highways Officer at 
Devon County Council who had responded saying no to this option.

Councillor Christie asked that this Committee write to Councillor John Hart, Leader 
at Devon County Council, seeking clarification as to why this option had been 
refused.   

Page 27



4

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Christie that the first 
remedial action on the Petition be accepted, namely –
 
“That the Council put policies in place to prohibit any further firework displays close 
to Bideford Long Bridge (too close is anything that causes the starlings to be 
disturbed from their roost by such displays)”.

It became evident during the ensuing discussions that there was a need for 
compromise, and although supportive of retaining the fireworks, displays must take 
place on an alternative location away from the Bideford Long Bridge.   

The points raised included:

 Pollyfield Centre to be included as an alternative location.   This was a 
location also suggested by the Petition Organiser.

 To close the new Bridge and to keep Bideford Long Bridge open for 
emergency vehicles

 Members of the public would expect to see the fireworks  

 Signatures on the petition – very few were residents of Torridge.  

 Wording on petition too ambiguous – no clarity on what is considered “too 
close”.

During the discussions the Senior Solicitor clarified to the Committee they are only 
considering events on Council land and not on private land.

The Environmental Health & Community Safety Manager advised on the legislation 
with regard to the noise levels of fireworks, and stated it would be difficult to enforce 
any restrictions made.

Following a discussion on what is considered to be “too close” to the bridge, it was 
agreed that an amendment to the proposal be included excluding firework displays 
taking place on East-the-Water Wharves.  Also to delete the following wording from 
the proposal “too close is anything that causes the starlings to be disturbed from 
their roost by such displays”.   

Councillor Brenton who proposed the motion and Councillor Christie who seconded 
the motion agreed that the amendment as stated above be included.   It was 
therefore -

Resolved:

That Torridge District Council prohibit any further firework displays close to Bideford 
Long Bridge ie East-the-Water Wharves, and that Pollyfield Centre, a barge and the 
new Bridge be considered as alternatives.

(Vote:  For 10, Against 1, Abstentions 1)

Page 28



5

9.   BURIAL FACILITIES FOR MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY WITH AN 
ISLAMIC FAITH 

The purpose of the report, presented by the Property and Procurement Manager, 
was for Members to consider and approve the provision of a dedicated area of 
Bideford Higher cemetery for use by the families from across the District who have 
an Islamic or other faith.

The Property and Procurement Manager informed the Committee of an update to 
the report, namely that the original proposal to “fence” off the area as a dedicated 
space was now considered to  be unsympathetic.  It was felt that hedging would be 
a more sympathetic separation.

All concerns and issues raised by Members were addressed by the Property and 
Procurement Manager.   These included:

 Double grave – having a separate area of Echelon graves facing Mecca 
would not be taking up so much room, and therefore double graves would 
not be needed.  This would reduce the costs to the families.

 Segregation – this is preferred by this particular faith group and other faiths.

 Hedging – it was agreed was more sympathetic.

Following a discussion it was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by 
Councillor Christie that the recommendations detailed in the report be agreed.

Councillor Brenton left the meeting at 11.35 am.

Councillor Pennington raised a concern with regard to the future expansion of the 
graveyard.  He suggested that an additional recommendation be included to ensure 
that the rights of the Council to extend the cemetery in the future are not restricted.

As Councillor Brenton had left the meeting, this amendment to his original proposal 
could not be agreed.

It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Laws and –

Resolved:

1. That the current cemetery procedures be reviewed and updated to reflect the 
current needs of the community. 

2. That the procedures are re-drafted to reduce the potential for mourner 
participation and remove the option to utilise shrouds (all burials should be in 
caskets). 

Page 29



6

3. That the burial of members of other faith groups to be accommodated and  
the principle to allocate and segregate an area of the Higher Cemetery in 
Bideford for specific use by the Islamic community be approved. 

4. That such provision be limited to residents of the District and be extended to 
other faith groups as may be necessary in the future.

5. That all graves be traditional lawn graves; mound graves will not be 
accommodated. Over-sized tributes and headstones will not be permitted.

6. That the full detail of the specific requirements should be developed 
following consultation and more detailed discussions with the local leaders of 
the respective faith groups.

7. That it does not restrict the rights of the Council from extending the cemetery 
in the future.

(Vote:  For 9, Against 2) – One Member having left the meeting

The meeting commenced at 10 am and closed at 11.45 am

Chair: Date:

Page 30



 

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Head of Communities and Place 

To: Community and Resources committee 

Subject: Taxi Rank Provision on Bideford Quay Car Park 

Date: 23rd January 2023 Reference:  

 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  

 
For the Committee to re consider the decision to allow taxis to use the concrete apron of 

the Quay to wait for space to become available on the main taxi rank at Bideford Quay. 
  

 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 

At the Licensing Committee held on 24 July 2019 it was agreed to set up a task and finish 
group to review taxi rank provision. A recommendation by the group was presented to the 

Licensing Committee held on 23 October 2019. Licensing Committee agreed to refer the 
recommendation to Community and Resources Committee for a decision. 
 

A report was presented to community and Resources Committee on the 25th November 
2019. 

 
The resolution was not implemented, for reasons explained below, and the requirement has 
since changed so there is an opportunity to reconsider the situation. 

 
2. REPORT 

 
The 25th November 2019 report presented the following information; 
 

The taxi rank on Bideford Quay has been in its current position since 2003. The rank only has 
capacity for approximately 8 taxis at any one time. At that time there were 49 taxis licensed 

by the Authority. For many years the Licensing Team along with taxi representatives and the 
Licensing Committee had attempted to establish additional rank space for taxis but without 
success. Prior to 2016 a feeder rank system was provided behind the harbour office for taxis 

to wait for access to the main rank but this was withdrawn by the Community and Resources 
Committee at its meeting held on 26 September 2016 due to safety concerns.  There had 

been a number of incidents and near misses as taxis exited the entrance to the car park. 
 
Prior to the November 2019 report a task and finish group, consisting of 4 members of the 

Licensing Committee, met along with three representatives from the taxi trade and discussed 
various options in relation to additional rank space. 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 10



It was agreed that their preferred option would be to establish a feeder rank system on the 
concrete apron area of the quay side. Appendix A provides a map of the area and the 

proposed system. 
 

At the time, the Environmental Health and Community Safety Manager raised serious 
reservations about the option put forward. The feeder rank would be counter to the 
advertised flow of vehicles along the quay giving rise to additional risks: 

 
- To pedestrians crossing the entrance to the car park – with the prominent entry 

signage at that end, the attention of pedestrians will reasonably be on the road rather 
than the on the quay. While a vehicle exiting the entrance would have to be extra 
vigilant, there are also concerns in relation to TDC liability should an accident occur. 

 
- Generally to users and pedestrians as it may not be immediately obvious to other 

drivers that the reverse flow is for taxi drivers only leading to those drivers not 
adhering to the one way system. The vigilance employed by the taxi trade may not be 
in place more generally.  

 
Similar one-way systems are in operation at both Bridge Street and Bank End Car parks; this 

is an established safety measure. 
 
The Environmental Health and Community Safety Manager made the following statement in 

relation to the proposal 
 

 “I appreciated the frustrations of the taxi trade and the reasons for the recommendation 
however Committee need to consider the wider implications, and potential liabilities to TDC, 
from putting in place such a scheme, even on a trial basis.” 

 
At Committee on the 25th November 2019 the following discussion and resolution was 

arrived upon: 
 
58.       TAXI RANK PROVISION 

 
 

When discussing this matter, the following points/concerns were raised: 
 
•        Health and safety issues – taxis existing the entrance  

 
• Signage – concerns these would be ignored. It will be advisory signage, not legal and 

cannot be enforced as not on Devon County Highways land 
•          Alternative locations were suggested 
• This to be for taxis only and to ensure taxi drivers are aware there will be no right turns 

 
It was acknowledged this is an issue that had been ongoing for a number of years, and the 

conclusion reached was, that although not an ideal option it was the best solution. 
 
It was proposed that a twelve month monitoring period be included in the recommendation. 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Bushby and – 

 

Page 32



Resolved: 
 

That the following option recommended by the Taxi Rank Task and Finish Working 
Group be agreed: 

 
“That a feeder rank system be established on the concrete apron area of the Quay side, as 
shown on Appendix A attached to the report, for a monitoring period of 12 months”. 

 
(Vote: For 10, Against 2) 

 
 
Demand 

 
Since the time of that above resolution there has been a significant shift in demand for taxi 

ranking space. It is also worth noting that the 3 yearly taxi demand study was undertaken last 
year and identified a significant reduction in public demand from the rank. This in turn has 
resulted in a reduction in the number of taxis operating from the rank.  

 
It was not clear from the survey if this was still as residual effect of the covid pandemic or 

whether this would be the new normal. 
 
Given that the market requirement has changed, officers are now recommending that there is 

no pressing need to pursue the provision of a rank on the Quay, with the associated safety 
risks, enforcement issues and costs, at this time. 

 
Should demand increase the situation can be revisited but it is unlikely that officers would 
ever recommend the solution resolved upon to committee in the future.  An alternative would 

be sought by seeking greater cooperation from DCC. 
 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
Potential TDC liability in the event of an accident as a result of the feeder rank system. 
 
The Council is not legally obliged to provide a taxi rank on it’s car park.   
 
The Off Street Parking Places Order will need to be changed to allow ranking on the concrete plinth. 
 
Financial Implications 
There will be a need to provide signage and line markings but cost would be minimal 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability Implications 
It is possible that the provision of the feeder rank on the Quay will mean that any future EV charging 
points will be located in less desirable and more costly locations. 

 
Equality/Diversity 
None 

 

Page 33



Risk Management 
Any decision will need to balance public safety, public finance, compliance with legislation and 
potential damage to reputation.  
 
The public would not be able to drive in both directions within the car park but taxis would be able to 
do so.  Likewise for parking on the concrete plinth.  There is a high degree of risk that this will lead to 
enforcement problems and conflict on the car park at busy times. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
All regulatory activity will be carried out in accordance with current policy and procedures. 
 
The proposal is not compliant with the Off-street Parking Places Order. 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
None 
 
Lead Member Views 
Councillor Hicks – Consulted 13/01/23 

 
Comment to follow. 
 

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

 
In 2019 the task and finish group identified a number of options to solve a problem that was 
relevant at that time but and was decided that the option detailed in the report was the only 

cost-effective solution despite the significant safety implications it presented. 
 

The resolution of Community and resources committee was never implemented because the 
Covid Pandemic forced a change of priority. 
 

Post pandemic the requirement for taxi ranking has reduced and there is no longer the same 
requirement for a feeder rank. 

 
The Health and Safety and car park management problems that that proposal present remain 
and would be difficult to overcome. 

 
Officers have been investigating the introduction of EV chargers into the car park and this 

proposal would limit the siting opportunities for those and increase the charges of installation 
accordingly. 
 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

In light of reduced demand and the considerable safety challenges associated with 
implementation of their previous resolution, it is recommended that: 
 

Committee determine whether or not to pursue their resolution of the 25th November 2019. 
 

 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Page 34



 Consultations: SMT 

 Contact Officer: Chris Parkhouse 

 Background Papers: Licensing data area/files 

 

Page 35



Page 36



COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2022/23 
 

Leadership 
 

24 May 2022 12 July 2022 6 Sept 2022 11 Oct 2022 22 Nov 2022 10 Jan 2023 21 Feb 2023 28 March 2022 

         
Community 

& Resources 
(Mondays) 

6 June 2022 
6pm 

25 July 2022 
10am 

12 Sept 2022 
6pm 

(CANCELLED) 

24 Oct 2022 
10am 

5 Dec 2022 
6pm 

23 Jan 2023 
10am 

Budget 

Special 
30 Jan 

10am 

6 March 

2023 
6pm 

Tuesday 
11 April 2023 

10am 

Finance 
 

        

Performance 
 

        

 
Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Sports Ground 
– Jurassic 
Fibre (NA) 

 
Cllr Hodson 

Notice of 
Motion – 

Motion for the 
Ocean (SK) 

 
 

 
Hubbastone 

Road 
Conversion to 
Hostel (SK) 

 
Urgency 

Decision -Energy 
Discretionary 
Scheme (SD) 

 
Harbour Board 

mins 
 
 

 
Homelessness Duty to 
Accommodate/Support 

(SD) 
 

Digital by Default & 
ICT Strategy  

(Jon W) 
 

Tennis Courts at 

Torrington (SK/NA) 
 

Update on 

Skateboard Park  
(AR) 

 
PART II 

 
Disposal of TDC Land 

(AR) 
 

 

 

Digital by 

Default & ICT 
Strategy  
(Jon W) 

 
Tennis Courts 

at Torrington 
(SK/NA) 

 

Update on 
Skateboard 

Park  
(AR) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

TDC Carbon Footprint 
(JW) 

 
Energy Survey 

Reports Summary 

(JW) 
 

Homelessness Duty to 
Accommodate/Support 

(SD) 

 
Street naming & 

numbering (Olly K) 
 

Burrough Farm Fence 

(SK) 
 

Eat festivals 
authorisation (CF) 

 

Fish Dock (SK) 
 

BFC Lease (SK) 
 

PART II 

 
Disposal of TDC Land 

(AR) 
 
 

 
 

 

Urgency Decision 
(SH) 

 
Notice of Motion – 

Cllr Brenton 

(cruise ship 
(SK) 

 
Burial Plot Policy 

 
Taxi Rank sign 
from Licensing 

(CP) 
 

Local Authority 
Housing Fund 

(SD) 

 
 

 

 
Budget Special 

 
The Plough (DH) 

 
Fees & Charges (DH) 

 
March Meeting 

 

Ideas for the Town Hall 
(SK) 

 
 

Leadership only 

 
Summary of S106 

contributions –re 
larger projects (SK) 

 
 

 
Rec. from Harbour 
Board Appledore 

Moorings (Revision 
Order)  
(PB) 

 

Town Centre 

Regeneration 
Strategy (SK) 

 
 

                                         

                                           To add to Forward Plan November/December 2023 – to bring a report to Committee giving details of the running costs for Hubbastone Hostel (from meeting July 2022). 

                                   FORWARD PLAN FOR 2024 – ADD – TO REVIEW A GREENER/RENEWABLE ENERGY SUPPLY WHEN CONTRACT RUNS OUT 2024 – rec from Climate Change 
                      Delegated Market Approval December 2025 – 5

th
 Dec 2022 meeting decided for 3 years.  

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 5th December
	3 Action List
	8 High Level Feasibility Study on the Viability of Using a Cruise Ship for Temporary Accommodation at Middle Dock, Appledore.
	9 Removal of Burial Restriction for Members of the Community with an Islamic Faith
	9a - Cemetery Service Fees 2022 2023
	9b - Minutes 10062019 1000 Community Resources

	10 Taxi Rank Provision on Bideford Quay Car Park
	11a - Proposed feeder rank

	12 Forward Plan

